ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
LEG SLATI VE BUDGET AND AUDI T COW TTEE
Anchor age, Al aska
July 22, 2015
9:36 a.m

MVEMBERS PRESENT

Representative M ke Hawker, Chair

Senat or Anna MacKi nnon, Vice Chair
Representative Kurt O son (via tel econference)
Representative Lance Pruitt

Representative Steve Thonpson

Representative Sam Kito

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senator Cathy G essel

Senator Pete Kelly (alternate)

MVEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bert Stednan
Senator Cick Bishop
Representati ve Mark Neurman

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON OF THE PUBLI C EDUCATI ON K-12 FUNDI NG STUDY
"Revi ew of Al aska's School Fundi ng Progrant

REPORT STATUS UPDATE - School Design and Construction
REPORT STATUE UPDATE - Eval uation of Salary and Benefits
Schedul e for School Districts

OTHER COW TTEE BUSI NESS

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

NO PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

W TNESS REGQ STER

JUSTI N SI LVERSTEI N, Vice President

Augenbl i ck, Pal ai ch and Associ ates (APA) Consulting

Denver, Col orado

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co-presented results of a review of school
funding in Alaska, with a focus on recommendati ons.

AMANDA BROWN, Seni or Associ ate
Augenbl i ck, Pal aich and Associ ates (APA) Consulting

BUD COWM TTEE -1- July 22, 2015



Denver, Col orado

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Co-presented results of a review of school
funding in Alaska, with a focus on the study approaches taken by
APA t o exam ne Al aska's school finance structure.

ELI ZABETH SWEENEY NUDELMAN, Director

School Finance & Facilities

Departnment of Education & Early Devel opnent ( DEED)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented a brief update on a construction
report.

DI ANE H RSHBERG, Director

Uni versity of Al aska Anchorage (UAA)

Center for Al aska Education Policy Research (CAEPR)

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented an update regarding salary and
benefit schedul es for school districts.

LI Z BROOKS, Research Anal yst

D vi sion of Personnel & Labor Rel ations

Department of Adm nistration (DOA)

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Introduced the study related salary and
benefit schedule for school districts.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
9: 36: 28 AM

CHAIR MKE HAWKER called the Legislative Budget and Audit
Commttee neeting to order at 9:36 a.m Senators G essel,
Hof f man, Kelly, and MacKi nnon, and Representatives Kito, d son
(via tel econference), Thonpson, Pruitt, and Hawker were present
at the call to order. Also in attendance were Senator Stevens
and Representatives Edgnon (via teleconference), Johnson,
Rei nbol d, Tarr, and Vazquez.

The commttee took an at-ease from9:37 a.m to 9:40 a. m

CHAI R HAWKER announced that a quorum had been nmet wthout the
alternate, and he rem nded nenbers that as outlined in AS
24.20.165, the alternate nenbers only vote when necessary to
provi de a quorum

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the conmittee would not hear an item
on the agenda: the Procurement of the Medicaid Reform and

BUD COWM TTEE - 2- July 22, 2015



Expansi on Consul tant. He enphasized the agenda item was
different from anything related to Governor Bill Walker's
executive order in determining that he would unilaterally accept
additional Medicaid funding. He said the cormittee had publicly
noticed that it would not be taking up the governor's RPLs or
any requests regarding the decision to inplement expanded
Medi cai d. He explained that at the last mnute, following a
review, a request was nmade for nore tinme to consider a couple
matters that may have affected the outcone of the proposal
eval uati on.

PRESENTATI ON OF THE PUBLI C EDUCATI ON K- 12 FUNDI NG STUDY:
Revi ew of Al aska's School Fundi ng Program

9:42:46 AM

CHAIR HAWKER announced that the commttee wuld hear a
presentation of the public education K-12 fundi ng study, "Review
of Al aska's School Funding Program™ He directed attention to
docunents pertaining to presentation [included in the commttee
packet] .

9:44: 53 AM

JUSTIN SILVERSTEIN, Vice President, Augenblick, Palaich and
Associ ates (APA) Consulting, began a PowerPoint presentation.
As shown on slide 2, he relayed that APA is a Denver-based
education policy consulting firm founded in 1983, that had
worked in all 50 states to review school finance issues and

suggest inprovenent to systens. He said APA had a broad
knowl edge of how states around the country addressed various
types of student needs. He said the conmttee would see about

45 slides depicting highlights of information included in the
135- page report. He thanked the legislature, staff, and school
districts across the state for their cooperation and turned the
Power Poi nt presentation over to his coll eague, Amanda Brown.

9:47: 06 AM

AVANDA  BROWN, Seni or  Associ at e, Augenbl i ck, Pal ai ch and
Associ ates (APA) Consulting, directed attention to information
shown on slide 3 of the PowerPoint presentation, which outlined
what the conmttee would hear, beginning with an overview of the
study and followed by information about: the interviews APA
conducted wth school district |eaders; reviews perforned of
funding system conponents; an equity analysis; a study of the
rel ati onship bet ween per f or mance, st udent need, and

BUD COWM TTEE - 3- July 22, 2015



expenditures; a consideration of fiscal sustainability; and
APA' s reconmendat i ons.

M5. BROMWN directed attention to slide 4, which showed that the
study was focused on reviewing the structure of the current
funding system She explained that APA was not asked to
consider the total nunber of dollars that would be adequate to
ensure the success of all students or to determ ne whether
specific adjustnments in the formula were correct. The
consultants were focused on whether sonmething should be part of
the current funding system rather than recalculating district
cost factors. She said APA knew about the current lawsuit in
Ket chi kan considering the constitutionality of having a |ocal
contribution requirenment, but APA was tasked with |ooking at the
current system and governing structure; therefore, the issue in
Ket chi kan was outside its purview.

M5. BROWN directed attention to slide 5, which showed that APA's
objectives were a strong education funding system which was
equitable; responsive to the needs of students, schools, and
districts; adequate and efficient in the resources it provided

and flexible - giving local control to districts to determne
how best to use resources. She said APA believed that these
resources were a reasonable starting point for exam ning any
state system She noted that while adequacy was a key

conmponent, it was not the focus of the study.
9:50: 17 AM

M5. BROWN turned to slide 6, which showed that APA undertook the
study from late February through July, during which time APA
revi ewed Al aska's current f undi ng structure; conduct ed
interviews with district stakeholders to understand how the
current school finance structure affects individual districts;
exam ned other states' approaches to school funding; exam ned
the equity of the current system |ooking at both district and
t axpayer equity; analyzed student performance across Al aska,
including the relationship between performance and student need;
examned the state's sources of revenue; and devel oped
recommendations for the State of Al aska to consider.

M5. BROMWN di scussed the interview process, as shown on slides 7
and 8. She said APA provided the opportunity for |eaders from
all districts to provide input for the study through: a public
listening session, which allowed for feedback; group phone
interviews, wth districts broken into categories, such as
rural, wurban, distant, and single-site; a series of in-person

BUD COWM TTEE -4- July 22, 2015



interviews conducted by two teanms covering 11 districts; and
foll owup individual interviews by phone. She said |eaders from
31 school districts participated. She said APA also interviewed
ot her stakehol ders, including Al aska Departnment of Education and
Early Devel opnent (DEED) staff. Al'l of the interviews focused
on gaining a better understanding of the current funding system
and its inmpact on school districts, as well as Al aska's unique
cont ext . She said the interviewees were generally happy wth
the current funding system and its conponents of the formula,
al though there was concern that any changes to the current
structure would be part of a "zero sum gane," which neant that
wi t hout additional dollars available, to give additional dollars
to one district would nean taking it from another. She said the
i ntervi ewees understood the conplexity of funding in Al aska, and
"they thought that the system was doing a good job really
t hi nki ng through that conplexity."

9:53:10 AM

M5. BROWN directed attention to slide 9, which reviewed the
fundi ng system conponents. She said APA exam ned each conponent

of the current funding system by: gathering feedback from
i ntervi ewees; conparing the conmponent to fundi ng approaches used
in other states; and analyzing relevant data. She said the

results of the review would be discussed in the context of the
reconmendat i ons.

M5. BROWN turned to slide 10, entitled, "Al aska' s School Funding
Progrant and stated that under the current fornula, a district's
funding - its "basic need" - was determined by nultiplying the
base student allocation (BSA) by the [district adjusted average
dai ly nenbership (DAADM ]. She said that figure is calculated
through a series of adjustnments, shown across one line on the
slide as: the average daily nenbership of the district, based
on the size of its schools and taking into consideration the
size of the comunity; the district cost factor, which accounts
for differences of location and renoteness and can range from
1.0 in Anchorage up to "over 2 in other locations;" a special
needs factor of an additional 20 percent to account for four

categories of students - vocational/career & technical, non-
i ntensi ve special education, bi-lingual/bi-cultural, and gifted
& talented; and a vocational and technical (VT) adjustnent of
1.5 percent. She explained that "each of the adjustnments in the
first line is multiplied against the preceding.” She noted
there were two student counts: the intensive services student
count, where each student is counted as 13; and the

correspondence student count, which counts every student as .9

BUD COWM TTEE - 5- July 22, 2015



for the purposes of funding. Qutside of this funding formula
was the funding for transportation and capital.

M5. BROM directed attention to slides 11-14, regarding equity

anal ysi s. She said that in the equity analysis, the data
exam ned i ncl uded denogr aphi cs, weal t h, revenues, and
expenditures of districts. The APA study team focused on:

hori zontal equity with regard to how equally resources are
allocated to districts or students in simlar situations;

vertical equity neasured how well the school finance system
takes into account varying student needs; and fiscal neutrality
assessing the link between local wealth and the anount of
revenue available to support a school district. She remarked

that it was challenging to consider the equity of Alaska's
current system due to extrene variations of size and renoteness
of districts, and there were significant adjustnments in the
current system to account for those differences. She i ndi cated
that one determination of equity was nade based upon property
weal th; however, because only city and borough districts in
Al aska have local wealth, APA had to create a wealth proxy to
take into account the inpact data available to include all
districts in the state. She noted that APA also used sone
wei ghted student counts to account for student differences and
those differences due to size and l|ocation that the current
system is picking up. She indicated they did the best they
could to get every district on an even playing field to conpare
agai nst each ot her.

9:57:14 AM

M5. BROWN stated that APA found a high level of variation in
hori zontal equity findings across Al aska, which neans various
districts were funded differently, and it was expected as the
coefficient of variation nmeasured the difference. In general,
an excepted coefficient of variation would be approxinmately .10,
but APA discovered the variation in Al aska was between .32 and
. 40. She said APA |ooked at both total and instructional
expendi t ur es. In ternms of vertical equity findings, M. Brown
reported that APA wanted to determ ne how nuch of the spending
di fferences across districts could be accounted for by the needs
of the students, the size, or location of the district. The
consultants found that after accounting for student need, there
were still high levels of variation. She added, "They were
reduced from what we saw when we didn't consider that, but they
were still higher than what would be a generally acceptable
standard for either total or instructional expenditure.” Wth
regard to fiscal neutrality findings, she stated that the common

BUD COWM TTEE - 6- July 22, 2015



benchmark was set at a .50 correlation between wealth - or in
this case the wealth proxy - and how nmuch noney was avail able
| ocal ly. She reported that Alaska's current system was bel ow
the .50 netric, which neans it neets the fiscal neutrality
t hreshol d.

CHAI R HAWKER noted that Ms. Brown was giving the commttee a
"high level abstract” of a detailed report included in the
committee packet.

M5. BROMN confirned that was correct.

10: 00: 13 AM

M5. BROM returned to the PowerPoint presentation, slides 15-17
regarding data analysis of performance, expenditures, and

student need. She indicated that the analysis exam ned the
rel ati onship between student need - denographics including how
many students had |anguage issues, such as Alaska Native
students or special education students - and perfornmance. She
said APA wused |inear regression to determne whether a
district's denographics had a significant relationship to
overall performance. Three denographic variables wth a
relati onship were: students with disabilities, limted English
proficiency (LEP) students, and Al aska Native students. She
said, "So what this neans [is] that ... as the percentage of

students in these population groups increased wthin the
districts, their performance on the [standards-based assessnents
(SBA)] decreased, so it was a negative relationship between the
two." She said the analysis also found a high degree of
variation in the percentages of students in those categories
bet ween districts.

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked Ms. Brown to clarify whether she was
saying that the nore resources an area received, the nore
negative the results were.

M5. BROWN clarified that APA was not |ooking at the associated
expendi t ur es, rather at the relationship between existing
denogr aphi cs and performance. In other words, she explained,
t he higher nunber of students in the aforenentioned categories
meant a decrease in performance.

M5. BROMW said the study team next exam ned the relationship
bet ween performance and expenditures and pointed out that a
regressi on anal ysi s exanm ned t he relationship bet ween
proficiency |evels and both instructional expenditures and total

BUD COWM TTEE -7- July 22, 2015



expendi t ur es. She said total expenditures included several
oper ati onal expenses not necessarily related to instruction.

CHAI R HAWKER asked Ms. Brown to clarify how APA determ ned which
expenditures were instructional.

10: 02: 39 AM

M5. BROWM answered, "The instructional expenditures were a
reporting line of [EED s] data; it's the instructional services
category of expenses.” As shown on slide 16, M. Brown said

APA found that higher instructional expenditures showed a
statistically significant, positive relationship W th
per f or mance. There was not a relationship between tota

expenditures and performance, but that was not unusual
consi dering t he t ot al expendi tures i ncl uded oper at i onal
expendi tures, she pointed out. Ms. Brown stated that the | ast

data analysis perfornmed examned the relationship between
student need and the current adjustnments wthin the funding

system She explained that even though the special needs
adjustnment was 20 percent for all districts, because it was
multiplied against the district's size and cost factor, there
was an "inmputed" weight for each district. She expl ai ned that

the additional ADM generated after the special needs, divided by
the original ADM equals a unique adjustnment for each district.
For exanple, in one district with a size adjustnment factor
equivalent to 1.10 and a district cost factor of 1.44 would
result in an inputed special needs adjustnent of approximately
32 percent, she said. Another district with a higher size
adjustnment of 1.2 and a higher district cost factor of 1.8 would
end up with a 43 percent adjustnent for special needs, as a
result of "that nultiplying nature of the first set of
adjustnents in the fornmula."

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked whet her APA noted a higher investnment in
operating expense dollars versus instructional expense dollars,
in regard to the aforenentioned three denographic variables,
[students with disabilities, limted English proficiency (LEP)
students, and Al aska Native students].

10: 05: 42 AM

MR. SI LVERSTEIN answered that APA did not make that
consideration as the analysis was focused on two data points on
expendi ture and regressing t hose dat a poi nts agai nst
characteristics of the district in order to figure out which of
the denographic variables showed "statistically significant

BUD COWM TTEE - 8- July 22, 2015



i npacts" on student performance. He indicated that it would be
difficult with the data gl eaned by APA to know the expenditures
related to certain popul ations, because that was not part of the
fundi ng system

SENATOR MACKINNON clarified she was asking about operating

expense, not the instructional dollar. She stated, "[If] the
operating expense of the facility is not variable, they should
be fixed nunbers, and if you pull out the instruction
[ component] - | don't know if it's as sinple as that - you woul d
come up with an operating [cost] for a particular item And
where |I'm driving to is if there's fixed cost and other
communities aren't able to invest in instruction, |'m wondering

if it has an inpact on the overall system because we've had that
conversation at this commttee and others whether we shoul d | ook
at fixed cost. So, ny followup question then, |ooking at fixed
costs and how they're different, by district, depending on
what's happening, is whether you considered, under those fixed
cost expenses of your overall spend for a district, the
additional one-tine noney that we've provided for at |east six
if not ten years, under the |eadership of Chairman Hawker and
others - energy cost equalization, basically; we were trying to
provi de one-time funding for those districts - and so that's why
| posed the question: If, in fact, the instructional dollar
going into the classroom has a benefit for the students in our
popul ation, but the challenge for the district is their fixed
cost, it's inmportant for us to know that. And the Senate did
have, under the |eadership of Senator Dunleavy, quite extensive
conversations about the fixed costs."”

MR. SILVERSTEIN responded that during the interviews conducted
by APA, "that point was highlighted frequently." He said that
as operating expenditures becone a higher percent of total
expenditures, it can drive dollars away from instruction. He
said this was of particular concern to districts with declining
enrol I ment but wth simlar fixed structures. He said APA did
not do a data analysis on the issue posed by Senator MacKi nnon.

10: 08: 52 AM

M5. BROWN continued with slide 17. She said APA exam ned
whet her the inputed weights were correlated wth student need
levels in districts and a high correlation was not found. She

directed attention to slides 18 and 19, regarding fiscal
sustainability. She said Alaska had a very high reliance on oi

revenues, which could be a sustainability issue with falling oil
revenues. She said Al aska was one of only seven states that did

BUD COWM TTEE - 9- July 22, 2015



not have an inconme tax and one of only five states that had no

state sal es tax. O her states nore reliant on oil revenue had
either a state sales tax or incone tax as a buffer. Al aska had
the highest percentage reliability on [oil revenues] at 83

percent, with approximately 12 percent in corporate inconme or
property tax; however, a mgjority of those taxes were still
being levied on oil and gas and noted the infornmation source was
the U S. Census Bureau. M. Brown said APA observed that Al aska
was relatively wealthy, in terns of annual personal inconeg,
slightly higher than the national average, but is anong the
| onest in local taxes. She said APA reviewed Al aska's revenue
stream bet ween 2005 and 2012 and found it had been nore volatile
than the national average. She said Alaska had two potenti al
sources of revenue to help stabilize funding until additional
revenue sources were available, and she deferred to M.
Silverstein to delve into further details regarding APA's
recommendations for the State of Al aska.

10: 12: 25 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN advised he would attenpt to incorporate the
information gleaned from the aforenentioned interviews conducted
by APA into the recommendati ons. He enphasi zed that the intent
of recommendations is to strengthen the current fornmula and
ensure that the system is equitable, responsive, efficient, and
fl exible. He said APA would not recommend specific |evels of
funding as that would be the responsibility of the |egislature
to determ ne; however, APA focused on adjustnents the State of
Al aska could nake to its structure and would cover what APA
heard and saw, in addition to covering the recommendati ons.

CHAIR HAWKER asked M . Silverstein to reiterate hi s
"appreciation for the fiscal sustainability relationship to
this" and how he may recognize the difficulty the State of
Al aska is currently facing.

MR. SILVERSTEIN, in response, noved to slide 21. He said any
change APA nmay recommend nust take into account the current

fiscal environnent. He indicated that interviewes expressed
concern that "if you make a change in a zero-sum environnent,
then there's by definition a winner and a loser.” He said APA

anal yzed whether Al aska's structure was sound, considering the
differences it faced as a state; therefore, there were
recomendations that could have fiscal inpact. He said APA
understood the current construct and the difficulty of "trying
to inplenment within that zero-sum gane." M. Silverstein said
he thought the best news was that overall, APA thought the

BUD COWM TTEE -10- July 22, 2015



current structure of Alaska's funding system is strong taking
into account student and district needs. He specified that the
vast mmjority of recommendations are for changes within the
current structure, not changes to the structure; therefore,
al though the type of adjustnents the state is naking are sound,
APA suggested the state my want to address the how the
adj ustments are being made to better serve students.

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked whether other conponents were used in
other states that Al aska had not considered and whether those
conponents woul d be shown during the presentation.

MR. SILVERSTEIN answered that APA did |ook at what other states
wer e doi ng. He indicated that the recomendations to adjust
Al aska's current plan would expand the plan, which would then
i nclude nore of what other states did.

MR. SILVERSTEIN, as shown on slide 21, related that the fornula
adjusted for variations in needs across the state through:
school size adjustnent (SSA), district cost factor (DCF), hold
harm ess, special needs funding, vocational career and technical
education (CTE) funding, intensive services funding, and
correspondence program fundi ng. He said there would be other
general recomendations, including those related to capital and
transportation.

10:18: 20 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slide 22. He said there
were a couple of spots in Alaska's current formula that APA
described as cliff points, where small changes in student
enrollment could lead to a large change in funding. He
reiterated that the standards based assessnent (SBA) performance
data showed that a district's student characteristics, including
its percentage of special education, LEP, and Alaska Native
students, was an indicator of the district's SBA proficiency
levels and the higher the nunber of students in those
categories, the lower the district's perfornmance woul d be. M.
Silverstein pointed out that conpared to other states, Alaska's
funding system does not differentiate on a student basis. He
acknow edged that it was called a student-based fornula;
however, he enphasized that the funding system did not fund any
specific students, such as the aforenentioned groups of
students, "at the student level." He said that brings back the
point that the special needs weight of .20 was applied the sane
across all districts, regardless of the nunber of students in

BUD COWM TTEE -11- July 22, 2015



t hose categori es. He explained that other states with specia
needs funding is tied to actual student nunbers or percentages.

MR. SILVERSTEIN, as shown on slide 23, said a couple of the
formula's existing adjustnents for student characteristics had
not been addressed in nmany years, school size in alnpbst two
decades and district cost factor in approximtely a decade. He
said APA has equity concerns that arise around the difficulty in
conparing wealth across districts. He explained that regiona
education districts, and city and bureau districts, having
different tax, policy, and structure, <creates a barrier to
evaluating equity especially at the fiscal tax payer equity
| evel . Finally, he said, revenues from oil taxes have declined
and predicted to remain |ower than previous projections, which
creates issues for fiscal sustainability.

10: 22: 14 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slide 24, which showed
APA's first recommendation that Al aska should consider not using
school size adjustnment (SSA) in larger districts. He said other

states often adjust for "necessarily small schools"” - those
schools in a setting where they are the only population of
school s. He added, "And so, if there is a small school, it's
there; it's the only school that's going to be able to serve the
students, and so, you're going to adjust for size." He advised
that as they get into larger districts, they don't tend to
adjust as frequently for small schools, whereas in |arger
setting where there may be nore capacity to build through
operations and sone economes of scale. M. Silverstein

clarified that APA was not saying that funding for Alaska's
| argest districts should "go down at the school size adjustnent
| evel ," but rather that there could be sone intrinsic incentives
to building smaller schools because there would be nore dollars
per student with a smaller school population. He said there are
also students in larger schools of larger districts that are
actually being funded at the school size adjustnent |evel below
1.0. He said APA recommends that Al aska take into account the
cost structures needed in the larger districts, while nmaking
sure not to provide incentives to have capital canpaigns to
build certain sizes of schools that are not necessarily
efficient or effective school sizes in a larger district.

SENATOR MACKINNON noted that when Alaska took over the
educational responsibilities from the federal governnent, there
was an issue regarding equitable funding, which she specified
was different from equal funding. She said the state is trying

BUD COWM TTEE -12- July 22, 2015



to reach its "highest conpliance” with federal requirenments in
regard to students. She asked, "This does not violate the
equi tabl e cl ause?” She said APA's comments were accurate in
that larger cities with taxing capacity want to tax at a higher
rate. She said, "And so, we've fixed what they could tax on
thenmselves to try to nake sure that we kept this equitable issue
in the forefront of our thoughts.™

MR. SILVERSTEIN responded that APA did consider the issue of
equity and the inpact of "that federal lens" nore in terns of
the overall funding system and when |ooking at "those caps on
the ... additional local - that can be provided." He stated
that nost of APA' s recomendations were targeted to student
need, and stated that being equitable really was about "serving
students at their level of need." He said these adjustnments are
used across the country and had been, in general, accepted as a
way to achieve an equitable formula. He continued, "And so for
us there was a little bit of a separation between when we're
| ooking at the funding side and ensuring ... the 25 percent
differential on expenditure but that wasn't ... or on revenue.
That didn't play into this specific recomrendation, but as we
put in our recomrendation about how to fund districts, they're
all about equity of students - how best to serve the differences
of students or schools or districts across the state.”

10: 26: 42 AM

M5. BROWN added that before the State of Al aska adopted any of
APA' s reconmendations to make changes to any of the adjustnents,
it would need to run an equity test allowng the state to use
its federal inpact aid, to ascertain that the difference between
districts had not exceeded what she recalled was 23 percent.
She said, "W didn't evaluate that test on each of them
i ndependently, because you may be using one from here, one from
t here, and conbi ned they woul d have different inpacts.”

SENATOR MACKINNON said if the state passed the federal bar, it
still had issues such as the aforenentioned Ketchikan |awsuit,
and she opined that no one would win in that scenario because
everyone would receive less if cities or areas with wealth were
unable to contribute and the state continued to face an econonic
downturn. She expressed concern that if the fornmula was changed
the state my have to stand against Ilawsuits from other
districts.

MR.  SILVERSTEIN noved on to slide 25. He said the next
recomendation was that districts should be allowed to pick

BUD COWM TTEE -13- July 22, 2015



whi ch school the students in a community under 10 are applied

He explained that in a community with under 10 students, those
students were added to the next smallest school in the district,
for funding purposes, before they were run through the school
size adjustnent table. He said that an unfunded school under 10
students would be added to the next snmallest school; thereby,
raising the enrollnent total and thus I|owering the anount
received per pupil, once a threshold of approximtely 40
students was net. He said APA recommended allowing districts
the freedom to decide where to add their smallest schools in
order to find the school that would be the nost efficient for
t hem He said APA did not know whether any district would nake
a different decision, but had heard enough times that districts
desire flexibility.

10: 30: 18 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slide 26, show ng that
APA's recomrendation for school size adjustnent (SSA) was that
Al aska should create an average forrmula for schools affected by

the comunity size cliffs at 100 and 425 students. He gave an
exanple, as follows: "The exanple we use a lot in the report
is: 101 students, as school is funded really as two schools -
so, there's K-6 and 7-12 are both run separately through the
school size table. At 100 - one less student - they're run
through the single site. And that difference is around 18 ADM
at that one tine. If you then add on the ... multiplicative
issue that you have - where ... after you do your school size

adjustnment, you're also doing a district cost factor, you're
al so applying special needs and a CTE adjustnments - that can get
closer like 40 students of change in funding based on ... one or
two students.” M. Silverstein said this was probably not
happening every year and everywhere, but APA heard during
interviews there were shifts from 102 students one year to 98
students the next year with a considerable shift to funding of
the district, but the district would not be changing its
structure dramatically because it lost or gained four students

He acknow edged that the recomendation to track this
information in order to average it over tine would add a |evel
of conplexity for DEED. He remarked that during the
presentation he wll discuss declining enrollnment and use a
simlar approach to smooth out the differences when schools are
consistently at "these cliff points.” He said APA tried to run
ot her options where "you could snooth these curves,"” but found
it would not be sensible or worth the effort for the cost.

BUD COWM TTEE -14- July 22, 2015



MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slide 27, which showed
that SSA was first created in 1998, and it may be time to update
the adjustnent and enphasized the inportance of setting the
intent of the base student allocation. He said it was not
reasonable to expect the smallest districts in the state to
provi de the exact sanme program as the largest, but deciding upon
a general program for every student to receive. He said that as
school size adjustnents were set considerations could be nmade as
to what was bei ng purchased.

10: 33: 33 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN noved to slide 28, regarding "Hold Harm ess.”
He said APA's recomends that Alaska create a true declining
enroll ment adjustnment to replace the current hold harnless

provision to be applied to all districts to ensure greater
funding stability. He said APA's study of Alaska's current hold
harm ess provision showed that it functioned like a declining

enrol I ment adjustnment. A classic hold harmess provision, as it
applies to school finance, ensures that a district has the sane
total level of funding going forward, he expl ained. He said a
study performed by Tenple University, reviewing all the hold
harm ess provisions and clinmbing enrollment adjustnents across
the country, showed that Alaska's hold harnless provision was
sonmething of a msnoner as it was really a clinmbing enroll nent
provi sion due to the way it functioned.

MR. SILVERSTEIN indicated that the second piece with the hold
harm ess provision was that it was a second area where there
mght be a cliff. He continued, "Because you have an absolute
targeted amount - 5 percent reduction of students in a year,
reduction of your school size adjusted population in a year -
you could have a district that has 4.9 percent and a district
that has 5.0. One is going to be getting this ... what we
really say is kind of a stabilizing of this decrease over tine,
and the other won't. And you can, again, mathematically find
situations where you can have a district losing far nore
students over a two or three year period than ... and not be
getting this hold harm ess provisions, than a district who hits
this 5 percent in one year but let's say then flattens out. And
so, it has sone real effects on funding, again, if it were to
happen. This is math and just trying to |ook at places where
cliffs exist, and we go through sone of those nunmbers in the
report."

MR. SILVERSTEIN said nmany approaches were used by other states
in terms of clinbing enrollnment, such as |ooking at prior year

BUD COWM TTEE - 15- July 22, 2015



funding or weighted averaging. Wth those types of formulas, he
said, "any growing district isn't going to be capturing their
grow h" in any given year. He said APA recommended a best of
three years averagi ng approach. He said APA heard frequently
from districts that they had uncertainty around budgeting. He
said the districts relied on estimates for their Cctober count,

and each year they faced concern regarding that count. He
explained that if the nunbers were off, districts could |ose
| arger nunbers of staff than they could "absorb." He stated

"And so, this sort of declining enrollnment adjustment would keep
everybody a little bit steadier over tine."

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked which states used the best three-year
aver agi ng approaches and how those states conpared to Alaska in
simlarity.

MR. SILVERSTEIN answered that the State of Colorado used a
mul ti-year average conbining nore than three years. He said

"Where you often see these are in states with smaller, nore
rural settings where you have a |large amount of decline, and
that decline as a percentage can be pretty large year to year."
He said in some md-size districts, losing 100-200 students, for
exanple, meant losing a |large anount of funding. He conti nued

"And in the report is a nunber; it wasn't as large as | would
actually ... as you would think - the anpunt of change that it
woul d t ake. It would be ... to inplenent this would be a big
inmpact on the districts currently on the 5 percent threshold,
but overall it's not actually a huge change in ADM in any one
gi ven year."

10: 38: 24 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN, in response to Senator MacKinnon, said APA did
not |look at all 50 states, but |ooked at states that did simlar
things and the information about other states using declining
enrollment is in APA's report.

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO asked whether it is the best of three years
of actual students in the classroom before adjustnents.

MR. SILVERSTEIN responded that hold harm ess was applied after
the school size adjustnent was nmade, and that was when the best
of the three year average was taken "fromthe Cctober count.”

MR, SILVERSTEIN noved to slide 29, regarding district cost

factor (DCF). He said APA believed Al aska's current DCF was
both strong and the nost appropriate approach for the state. He

BUD COWM TTEE -16- July 22, 2015



said there were a few states that actually use any type of cost
of living adjustnent, and "they differ from what we would cal
cost of living adjustnents or cost of education adjustnents.”
He said Al aska would consider its cost of education adjustnents
and revi ew whether those factors inpact the cost of education in
the state. He said sone states considered cost of living, such
as what it cost their enployees to live in certain areas, but
not the cost to provide education services. For exanpl e,
Virginia applied cost of |living adjustnents only to those
districts closest to Washington, D.C He named Maryland and
Col orado as two other states that use this type of adjustnent.

MR. SILVERSTEIN said given it had been 10 years since the |ast
update of the DCF, it may be tinme to update the information in
the DCF study to ensure it was responsive to current district

needs. Based wupon concerns expressed by school district
| eadership around the state during the interviews, he said the
study team believed that all current DCF cost areas should
remain in the formula. He said two additional areas of cost

that could be considered were: the cost of student activities
as sone schools have to spend nore to provide experiences for
students; and the cost of travel for education specialists,
which can be nmuch higher for special education teachers in

renote areas of Al aska. He enphasi zed the inportance that al
cost areas be evaluated in order to be efficient and provide
educational dollars, which were linked to higher student

per f or mance.

10: 42: 50 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slide 30, regarding
speci al needs funding. He stated that Al aska's current specia
needs funding did not fund for special needs on specific
students, but was a "block grant" nodel. He said APA' s
recommendation was that the state nove toward a series of
adjustnents for special needs that were student popul ation-

specific and need-differentiated. Further, he advised, the
state should consider providing an adjustnent for at-risk
st udents. He said data analysis in the report showed a w de
variation in the follow ng: LEP students, special education
students, lowincone or at-risk students, and Al aska Native

students. He indicated there were |arge concentrations of those
students throughout Alaska's 53 districts and nost states
applying an LEP adjustnent or at-risk adjustnent do it nore on a
student basis. In terns of special education, he said sone
states applied a "fences-based" approach, which was nore |ike
Al aska's block grant nodel by assuming every district had the

BUD COWM TTEE -17- July 22, 2015



sane level of need and the sane distribution of students.
However, LEP or at-risk or |owincome groups were far nore
student - based, and the differences in districts were funded in
such cases in order that had "the equitable dollars to be able
to provide differentiated services." He said APA considered a
nunber of different approaches for Alaska to consider and
offered that Al aska could use weights when considering special
needs funding and be in line wth other states today, and the
nunbers in the long term would not differ greatly from what
Al aska was currently providing in its special needs adjustnent.
He said this would disconnect Al aska's special needs funding
from ot her adj ust nents.

10: 45: 47 AM

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked whether APA's analysis reflected
consideration of the litigation that Alaska school districts
were facing in attenpting to neet special needs. Further, she

asked if APA had conpared that to other states that may have
other levels they provide in terns of special needs.

MR. SILVERSTEIN answered that APA had not | ooked at any specific
l[itigation as it was focused on how nuch differentiations there
were in the student need setting at the district |evel. He
said, "Districts look very different when you think about the
type of students who are wal king through the door, based on the
denogr aphi ¢ data that we were using."

SENATOR MACKINNON opined that conpared to the State of
Washi ngton, Alaska's services to special needs students 1is
different. She said Al aska wants an integrated classroom where
people with disabilities are able to function. She said she had
heard that other states provide less, which pertains to the
instructional dollar providing services for special needs
st udent s.

MR. SILVERSTEIN replied that as shown at the bottom of slide 30,
the first place Alaska districts cover wth special needs
funding was their non-intensive special education students and
addi tional funding goes toward intensive special needs students.
He said, "Wwen there are dollars ... other dollars, they're
going to look at vocational and gifted and talented and ... bi-
lingual /bi-cultural, but right now with the way it is, if you
have a very high concentration of students - especially your
non-intensive special [education] - nost of those dollars are
going to go to that population because it's this block grant
and it's not differentiated by need."

BUD COWM TTEE - 18- July 22, 2015



MR. SILVERSTEIN noved to slide 31, regarding Career and
Techni cal Education CTE funding, and he related that APA
recoomended that Alaska leave its CTE adjustnment in place;
however, when funding was available the state should consider
whether it was possible to increase the level of funding and
fund actual CTE student counts. He said the CTE funding was
done on a block grant nodel applied to K-12 popul ations, and
then used for 7-12 student popul ations. He said APA heard from
districts that the current weight had done well in hel ping those
districts provide CTE education support. 1In a state where there
are a nunber of jobs that require technical skills but do not
require a higher |level of education, the expansion of CTE
education was very inportant, he said. He said the underlying
guestion was whether to nake it nore student specific, so "if
you have nore of those popul ations, you would get nore funding."
One consideration, he said, was that sone district would say it
was nore difficult to provide a nore robust program in sone of
the smal |l er settings.

10: 49: 55 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slides 32 and 33, which
addressed intensive services funding, and said that Al aska
should not nmake any major changes to the current intensive
services adjustnment. He pointed out that Alaska currently funds
its intensive services students at a 13 weight, which is higher
t han ot her states.

The comm ttee took an at ease from 10:50 to 11:05 a. m

MR. SILVERSTEIN returned to the discussion of intensive services
f undi ng. Wth regard to the high weight, he explained Al aska
did not provide extraordinary aid funding that many other states
provi de, wherein the state picked up the full cost or sone
percentage of the cost of students over a certain threshold. He
advi sed, "Your approach does not do that but it does have higher
wei ght, so we think the current structure is a good structure."”
M. Silverstein said another recomendation was that if Al aska
reexam ned the DCF, it should examine the additional costs of
providing related services for intensive special education
students in renote and/or isolated areas. He clarified that APA
was not recomrending that the state should apply the DCF to the
i ntensi ve services funding. He continued:

What we're hearing, and what ... we think should be
examined if there is a look at the district cost

BUD COWM TTEE -19- July 22, 2015



factor again, is that there are sone services provided
by therapists who have to travel from nore urban areas
to very renote settings, and to provide the sane |eve

of service to a student with the sanme disability in a
very renote or isolated area mght cost substantially
nore than it would in the nore urban setting.

SENATOR MACKI NNON noted that M. Silverstein had said APA was
hearing feedback from districts and surmsed that was an
indication those districts were "bringing people in to help.”
She related that in the past she had been involved with the K-12
education budget, and [the legislature] enbedded wthin the
Department of Education & Early Devel opnent the funding for that

travel . She asked whether M. Silverstein was telling her that
districts were being charged, that the travel funds had sonehow
been renoved. She asked, "Can you tell me specifically how

di stricts have been affected by that?"

11: 07: 53 AM

M5. BROWN responded that APA did not hear districts talk about
"the state picking up those costs,” but was told about the high
cost of bringing [specialists] to the district, both in paying
for the actual travel and the tine spent in travel, the latter
of which stretched | onger because of weather del ays.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said districts could have specialized teaching
staff they send out to other schools in their region, but the
state had been providing education specialists to go to
districts in need of assistance. She said the state had taken
on that responsibility based on a previous lawsuit and it would
be interesting to consider the natter nore.

MR. SILVERSTEIN highlighted the |ast recommendation regarding
| ndi vi dual i zed Service Funds (ISF), that Al aska should coll ect
data on the novenent of intensive special education students
into and out of districts throughout the year to understand the
potential cost inpact for districts due to this nobility. He
said APA was unable to do this as part of its study. He related
that the type of intervention services needed for special needs
students varies wth each student; therefore, even iif one
student begins school and another |eaves the school md-year,
there still could be unfunded costs that year as a result of
that varied need. He said the data should include student
novenent and types of services being provided.

BUD COWM TTEE - 20- July 22, 2015



VR. SI LVERSTEI N di rected attention to t he i ssue of
correspondence prograns, on slides 34 and 35. He said Al aska
was unique in its approach to provide a publicly funded
homeschool option as few other states did so. He specified that
APA considered only publicly funded honeschool prograns. He
said APA recomended that if a new system was put in place to
fund for actual counts of special needs students, then Al aska
coul d consider adjusting for the special needs of correspondence
students by identifying what types of special needs were present
and what services were needed. He said, "W've heard about
students who have these types of needs, where the funding
isn't provided because correspondence funding is outside of the
formul a where the block grant is for special needs.”

MR. SILVERSTEIN sai d another of APA s recomrendations related to
correspondence prograns was that if blended |earning prograns
grew, then as they grew Al aska should examne the cost of the
progranms and the nethods for counting bl ended |earning students.
He explained that when blended learning progranms are fully
i npl enented, it neant students undertook part of their |earning
offsite and part onsite. He said there were factors in Al aska's
system that woul d all ow soneone taking a course to be counted as
a part-time student. He relayed that APA heard concern from
districts that the current system did not quite address "the
structure where you're having students cone in, but they're not
necessarily in classes, right; they're comng to the school to
have support in a blended |earning environnent, but that's not

necessarily in a class.” The cost structure of Alaska's
correspondence funding did not necessarily align to the blended
| earni ng novenent. He indicated that because the trend is

growi ng across the country, APA wanted Al aska to take a | ook at
it; however, he enphasized that APA was not neking a specific
recommendation for it.

11:12: 55 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slide 36, regarding
transportation. He said APA did not recommend changes to
Al aska's current transportation funding system and suggests
that districts continue to be allowed to wuse transportation

f undi ng for intra-district transportation. He sai d
transportation funding varied w dely across the country as there
were a nunber of approaches. In Alaska, transportation funding

was funded on a per pupil anmbunt based on actual district costs.
He said that nost districts expressed satisfaction with the
current system but there was repeated nention that wthout
conpetition, pursuing contracts could be problematic. Regarding

BUD COWM TTEE -21- July 22, 2015



intra-district transportation, he said there was nention that
there was new accounti ng based on various types of
transportation. He said the evaluation was different for noving
students to and from school as compared to noving students from
program to program within a district. He explained that many
districts have a career technical education center, and they use
transportation to bring students to and from that center. He
said districts wanted to ensure that wthin the funding
structure that would still be allowed. He added, "They feel
that ... if you got rid of that, that cost is going to have to
come from sonmewhere if you want to keep as effective an approach
for those prograns.”

11:14: 28 AM
MR. SILVERSTEIN turned to slide 37, regarding capital. He said
APA was making no specific recomendations around capital. He

relayed that funding varied wi dely across the country, with sone
states picking up |arge shares of the cost and others picking up
little to no cost of capital. He said districts wth declining
enrollment with the sane structures to maintain were concerned
with the growing costs of maintenance of buildings and the
decreasing condition of the buildings. He said districts were
concerned about the elimnation of the debt reinbursenent
program is an issue as it was one way districts could |everage
support from the comunity. He concluded that any |oss of
capital funding was an issue for districts over tine.

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slides 38-40, regarding an
equity study. He invited the conmittee to read the nunerous
metrics, analyses, and statistics, in the equity section of the
full report. He said there were structured approaches to
| ooking at what is equitable in ternms of horizontal, vertical
and fiscal neutrality. He said the APA team recomended that
Al aska revisit its special needs adjustnment to ensure that it
accounted for differences in concentrations of special needs
students, especially at-risk students, across districts. When
| ooking at vertical equity across districts, he said, once the
adjustnment for special needs has been net even when adjusting
for current factors in Alaska's school finance formula, there
remains "an equity issue.” He said that nmeant that all the
additional dollars "comng on top"” outside of the mandated | ocal
mat ch created equity issues that were not necessarily related to
student need. One way to do that, he said, was "through the
characteristics.”

BUD COWM TTEE -22- July 22, 2015



MR. SILVERSTEIN said APA's next recomrendation related to equity
was that Alaska should conduct further analysis of the
differences in the anmount of |ocal revenues contributed to
districts and expl ore approaches for either equalizing access to
additional revenues beyond state foundation funding for |ow
wealth districts, or further limting the anount of |ocal
funding that nay be contributed to districts. He indicated this
woul d create greater horizontal equity between districts.

MR.  SILVERSTEIN said APA's final reconmendation related to
equity was that Al aska should consider creating a consistent
neasure of local capacity for supporting districts that nmay be
used across all district types. He said APA attenpted to create
a wealth proxy, which was explained further in the report. He
said finding a way to discuss the local fiscal capacity of
districts included discussion of what was equitable, especially
in terms of what fiscal neutrality for tax payers |ooked I|ike
He said, "Wth the split between your [REAA] districts and your
city & bureau districts, it beconmes difficult to nake that
conparison currently.”

11:18: 37 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to the recommendation for
fiscal sustainability, on slides 41-45.  He stated that over the
long term it may be in the state's best interest to begin
nmoving toward reducing its reliance on oil revenues because both
demand and production would likely begin a permanent downward
trend. He said in order to reduce its 80-90 percent reliance on
oil revenues, the state would need to put revenue streans in
pl ace. He said APA recomended the state could tenporarily use
funds from its constitutional budget reserve (CBR) fund or
permanent fund earnings reserve account, both of which APA
observed had billions of dollars as of the beginning of fiscal
year 2016 (FY 16).

CHAI R HAWKER noted that APA had not attenpted to recommend a
fiscal policy solution for Alaska, but was just "pointing out
t he obvi ous."

MR. SILVERSTEIN confirmed that was true.

MR. SILVERSTEIN said the next recommendation related to fiscal
sustainability was that since Al aska pays for a relatively high
state share of K-12 funding, the state should explore equitable
approaches to adjusting the local share of that funding. He
said APA recognized that there was ongoing litigation through

BUD COWM TTEE -23- July 22, 2015



the Ketchikan |awsuit, which was not part of APA s purview and

woul d change the discussion dramatically. He said currently
Al aska funded 64.8 percent of K-12 funding and the national
average was approximtely 45 percent. He said the state could

consider renoving that cap to allow districts to provide "a
hi gher percentage of their total education pot."

11: 21: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO said that recommendation seemed counter to
an earlier recomendation to provide nore conpressed funding to
equal i ze on the horizontal side. He explained, "So, if you're
allowing for nore |local contribution, then there are sone
districts that can't provide that additional |ocal contribution,
whi ch neans it would push them outside that horizontal equity."

MR. SILVERSTEIN clarified that in this case, APA was addressing
the 45 percent cap required on local contribution. If a
district produced nore than 45 percent of its total basic need,
it would be capped, "they don't have to go to the 2.65." He
continued, "This 1is on the required anmount, not on the
additional anmount that can cone above. So, the total pot of
dol |l ars between state and |ocal would stay the same when you're
just thinking about the basic aids calculation, it's just that
nore would be comng fromthe local. It would reduce the state
share, and it would increase the local share. So, it isn't the
addi ti onal dollars above."

MR. SILVERSTEIN stated another recomendation related to fisca
sustainability was that the state could consider creating a
floor for the Inpact A d Percent applied to city and bureau
(C&B) districts making an effort above the required I evel, which
woul d | ower the anpbunt of state aid provided to these districts.
He paraphrased the remaining information on slide 44, which read
as follows:

Currently C&B districts that provide |local funding
above the mnimum required |ocal effort are rewarded
wth a decrease in the Inpact A d Percent used to
calculate the anpbunt of inpact aid that offsets state
f undi ng.

By creating a floor for this reduction the state woul d

reduce the <cost of state basic aid and possibly
i nprove funding equity across districts.

BUD COWM TTEE - 24- July 22, 2015



MR. SILVERSTEIN turned to the last recommendation related to
fiscal sustainability, and read as foll ows:

As noted in the equity study recomendations, the
state should also consider formally defining and
measuring the local fiscal capacity of all districts.

MR, SILVERSTEIN said that in order to understand what was
happening at the local |evel, a conparison was necessary.

11: 24: 46 AM

MR. SILVERSTEIN directed attention to slides 46 and 47, which
showed recommendati ons not specific to any one conponent of the
funding system but were issues that arose when APA conducted
its full study. First was APA's recommendation that Al aska
shoul d undertake an exam nation of the state's current school
district governance structure to ensure it was the nost
efficient and effective approach to serving students. He said
APA's study focused on the current school finance fornula and
its application within the current school district governance
structure in the state. The findings reflected a replication of
district-level services, and APA recomended this as sonething
to be eval uated. Al t hough, he indicated, one possible barrier
was differing tax structures. The | ast recomendati on was that
Al aska should exam ne student enrollnent trends through the
year, which he indicated was relevant to the concern about
declining enrollnment. He said there was sone question as to
whet her Cctober was the best nonth in which to count students.
He explained this was because there was a varied behavior
pattern in communities in October as a result of [tribal]
gatherings, end of seasonal work, and receipt of the Al aska
permanent fund dividend (PFD). Because APA did not have student
counts for multiple points during the school year, it was not
possible to substantiate the anecdotal information. He said
Al aska should consider whether the October count is the nost
hel pful .

REPRESENTATIVE PRU TT asked when the state should count
st udent s.

MR. SILVERSTEIN answered that without the data it is difficult
to answer. Each state counts students differently and he gave a
coupl e of exanples. He said the goal was to determne the
nunmber of students the state would have to serve in the
education system over tinme, and he reiterated that Al aska should

BUD COWM TTEE -25- July 22, 2015



figure out whether or not COctober was the best nonth for the
nost representational student count.

REPRESENTATI VE PRU TT questioned whether Alaska would find
uni que chal l enges any other time of year than Cctober. He asked
whet her there was a better way to conme up with a nunber beyond

just a 20-day snapshot. He clarified that he was not interested
in placing a burden on small districts, but questioned whether
there may be "other nechanisnms in other states.” He ventured

that Al aska woul d have to devise a different system

MR. SILVERSTEIN reiterated that APA was unable to |ook at that
part of the issue - whether October was a one-tine "blip" or
whet her there was never an opportune tine for the student count.
One factor, he said, was what kind of reporting system was in
pl ace. He concurred wth Representative Pruitt about not
wanting to put any additional burden on districts to track when
"the marginal cost is higher than the narginal gain for
anybody. "

CHAI R HAWKER noted that Al aska was not able to give APA the U. S.
Census information to use; therefore, APA s reconmendati ons were
for the state to begin by collecting that Census data.

MR. SILVERSTEI N responded that's correct.

11:31: 04 AM

REPRESENTATI VE KITO noted that the OCctober count allowed the
| egislature to have the nobst recent nunbers before entering into

its budget cycle. If counts were brought in from the previous
year, a district could have a different affect, but not
accurately reflect what was happening in the school for that
[enmphasis on "that"] vyear. The legislature, he said, was
al ready conpeting its budget process by the tine the school year
ended; therefore, it was "a difficult thing to adjust.” He
stated, "I didn't cone up with a reasonable solution. The
further back we go, the further away from the actual student
popul ation that we end up with as we're looking at ... our
budget . "

CHAI R HAWKER stated that the docunents presented were now public
and available on the conmittee's web site. He noted there was
l[imted time with the folks from APA, and he thanked all the
school districts that participated in the study and the efforts

BUD COWM TTEE - 26- July 22, 2015



of APA to get as nuch information and diversity of opinion as
possi bl e.

REPORT STATUS UPDATE - School Design and Construction

11: 34: 14 AM

CHAI R HAWKER announced that the conmttee would hear a brief
update regarding two ongoing studies, wunder House Bill 278,
pl aced under the purview of the Legislative Budget and Audit
Conmittee that include a school design and construction report
and a salary and benefit schedule for school districts report.

11: 35: 04 AM

ELI ZABETH  SWEENEY  NUDELMAN, Director, School Fi nance &
Facilities, Departnment of Education & Early Devel opnent (DEED),
said she would discuss the | anguage in House Bill 278, provide a
glinpse of the scope and process of the report, talk about the
contractor undertaking the report, and provide a progress
updat e.

M5. NUDELMAN stated that House Bill 278, passed into law in
2014, and included Section 53, which had the requirenent for the
school design and construction report. She read the directive
as foll ows:

The Departnent of Education & Early Devel opnent shall
prepare and submt a report to the legislature no
|ater than June 15, 2015, on the benefits and
di sadvantages of using coded typical designs for
school construction in both the railbelt and rural
areas of the state.

M5. NUDELMAN said the departnent began a request for proposa

(RFP) process to begin the study. She said the Departnent of
Education & Early Devel opnent (DEED) sought a nulti-disciplined
team of engineers, energy experts, contractors, and building
mai nt enance people as it was not |ooking solely for an academ c
review of publications. The departnment also directed the
contractor to seek stakeholder input and include those people in
the study famliar with the buil dings. Furt her, DEED suggested
the contractor consider six climte regions. She said the RFP
was on the state's web site as a public docunent. Ms. Nudel man
rel ayed that subsequent to the RFP and procurenent process, the
contract was awarded to Envision Architecture and DeJdong-
Ri chter. She stated that the contractor's nethodol ogy

BUD COWM TTEE -27- July 22, 2015



enconpassed both a review of national publications, serving
school districts, and breaking the area into six regions. They
visited the schools in the regions and spoke to school staff,
st akehol ders, parents, and students in Barrow, Bethel, Juneau,
Anchor age, Fairbanks, Kodiak, and Matanuska-Susitna (Mat-Su), in
March 2015. She noted that Envision Architecture was based in
Anchorage, and DeJdong-Richter was an education planning entity.
There were also participants from nmultiple firns across Al aska,
sone attended neetings and other devel oped surveys and conducted
research. She advised that the research team was conprised of
five engineers, two contractors, one project manager, and one
bui | di ng nmai nt enance expert.

MS. NUDELMAN said the departnent received the first draft from
the contractor prior to June 15. She said tinme had run out, but
the contractor wanted to "take it back again" to the expert
research team therefore, the departnent decided the best
decision was to extend the tineline to approximtely Decenber 1,
2015.

REPRESENTATI VE KI TO asked whether the contractor al so considered
the smaller communities within the six regions.

M5. NUDELMAN said she did not have the exact areas the
contractors visited; however, she opined the contractor sought
existing research to "flesh that out to include the smaller
areas that they did not go out to in person.™

11:42: 57 AM

SENATOR MACKINNON said the Senate Finance Committee had
expressed that if the state placed architects, engineers, and
contractors in the position of a review team then each one of
them could benefit from individual construction. She said the
concern was who on the team woul d be advocating for the state to
save noney, which was the purpose of evaluating individual
design in conmunities. She offered an exanple of the state's
huge investnent in Kivalina. She indicated that what woul d cost
$14 mllion in another area has been allocated for $42 nmillion

She said she would | ook at the upconming report through a lens to
determ ne who was benefiting.

M5. NUDELMAN r esponded:
The departnent relied on the charge which was the

di sadvant ages and benefits of prototypical study. And
in our RFP we cued up the contractors who would

BUD COWM TTEE - 28- July 22, 2015



apply for that work, with questions, and we had quite
a few questions. Because as we looked at it, we
didn't see the contractor bringing a solution to the
| egi slature, we saw them bringing information to the
| egi sl ature, and specifically the benefits and
di sadvant ages.

So, | would concur that there will be lenses to view
the information. The departnent goal was to get good
information over a wde range of topics to be
di scussed.

SENATOR MACKI NNON said she would be looking for "nobilization
and denobilization costs in the structure that it's supporting
i ndi vi dual design, as well as |ong-term mai ntenance consequences
for individual systens that are individually set up that require
the state to invest differently in each design.” She expl ai ned
those would be the two | enses she would use to deternm ne whet her
a prototypical school design had been fairly eval uat ed.

CHAI R HAWKER t hanked Ms. Nudel man for her update.

REPORT STATUS UPDATE - Eval uation of Salary and Benefits
Schedul e for School Districts

11: 46: 38 AM

CHAIR HAWKER announced the commttee would hear an update
regarding a salary and benefit schedule for school districts.

11:47:15 AM

DI ANE H RSHBERG Director, University of Al aska Anchorage (UAA)
Center for Alaska Education Policy Research (CAEPR), noted that
Dr. Matt Burnman (ph), an econom st fromthe Institute of Socia
and Economic Research was available for questions, and
i ntroduced Liz Brooks, a research analyst from the Departnent of
Adm ni stration who would give an explanation about the genesis
of the study.

11:48: 06 AM

LI Z BROOKS, Research Analyst, D vision of Personnel & Labor
Rel ations, Departnent of Adm nistration (DOA), stated that the
Department of Admnistration (DOA) was tasked to present a
witten proposal for a salary and benefits schedule for school
districts, including an evaluation of and recomendations for

BUD COWM TTEE -29- July 22, 2015



t eacher tenure. She said the department sought a partnership
with the Center for Alaska Education Policy Research (CAEPR)
t hrough a nmenorandum of under standi ng (MU).

M5. HI RSHBERG related that the study was running behind its
tinmeline due to unanticipated data challenges. She said the
team was using a lot of data gathered by a nunber of state
agencies, and there were mssing values and inconsistencies.
She said it took tine to nmake corrections, and initial analysis
had to be nade before doing so and opined that the issues had
been resol ved. She said a draft report had been prepared, and
productive discussions had taken place between DOA and DEED,
particularly wth Departnent of Administration Conm ssioner
Shel don Fi sher not just on how the anal yses had been garnered,
but also better to present the report. Currently, the team was
tweaking the data to nmake nore sense to a broader audience, she
expl ai ned.

M5. HI RSHBERG said the goal was to put the report out for public
comment by the next week in order to receive feedback. She
offered to give nore details on specific aspects of the study,
in ternms of what the team had done.

11:52: 03 AM

CHAl R HAWKER asked when the final study would be concluded and
ready for presentation.

M5. H RSHBERG rel ated the hope was to have a draft available in
the next week; however, the team wanted the conm ssioner to be

confortable wth that. Following would be a two-week public
comment  peri od, after which both the final report and
acconpanying public coment would be shared. She indicated

there may be feedback added, but said the study has received
positive feedback from DEED;, therefore, she did not anticipate
any maj or changes. She said the enphasis was on providing the
nost accurate picture to the |egislature.

CHAIR HAWKER said he was confortable with the update on the
status, but asked the conmttee nenbers if they wanted further
details at present.

SENATOR MACKI NNON asked if the committee could expect to see the
study by Septenber 1, 2015.

M5. Hl RSHBERG answer ed yes.

BUD COWM TTEE - 30- July 22, 2015



OrHER COWM TTEE BUSI NESS

11:53: 51 AM

CHAI R HAWKER asked if there was ot her conmmi ttee business.

SENATOR MACKI NNON stated that Medicaid was an issue that many
people were passionate advocates for, and many people had
contacted her office in opposition to the governor's executive
order. She requested a neeting for the opportunity to vote on
t hat i ssue.

CHAI R HAWKER stated that as chair of the Legislative Budget and
Audit Commttee, he had distributed to the entire |egislature
two | egal opinions, both of which conclude that no nmatter how
the conmttee would recommend the governor proceed, it had no
voice in his decision to inplement expanded Medi caid. If the
| egislature did not respond to the governor's RPLs, he had 45
days from the day he issued them to wait, and then he could
proceed regardless of any action. Any hearing and subsequent
vote by the commttee regarding the RPLs would trigger the
governor's ability to pursue his actions under those RPLs.
Chair Hawker said Governor Wl ker had stated, both publicly and
privately, that he was not going to take the legislature's

counsel into consideration; he had made a firm and final
decision and "there's frankly nothing of substance for this
commttee to acconplish.” He nentioned policy bills in both the

House Finance Conmmttee and Senate Finance Commttee, and he
opined that it would be nore appropriate for those commttees to
take up a policy discussion so there could be a substantive
out cone. He stated that by statute, the Legislative Budget and
Audit Conmittee was not a policy commttee and was not allowed
to speak on policy decisions on behalf of the entire
| egi sl ature, and he did not want to give any inpression to the
public t hat t he commttee had greater authority or
responsibility than it, in fact, had. He reenphasi zed that the
committee had no ability to change the outcone of the governor's
resol ve

11:56: 49 AM

SENATOR G ESSEL stated that as a separate but equal branch of
government, the opportunity to review the docunents was the
commttee's purview, and she woul d appreciate the opportunity to
do so even though the statute authorizes the governor to act
unil aterally.

BUD COWM TTEE -31- July 22, 2015



SENATOR MACKI NNON opined that "the process by which this is

comi ng down" was part of the commttee's responsibility. She
of fered her understanding that the noney involved to the state
woul d be about $148 million dollars. She said she had read the

| egal opinion to which Chair Hawker had referred, and said it
had anbiguity of the governor's ability to "change the structure
statutorily on expansion of an eligible group of recipients.”
She stated her belief that having sonmeone present to explain the
executive order and the ability of the commttee to ask
guestions, as well as deny or reduce the appropriation anpunt
the governor would be placing as a fiscal responsibility of the
state, was in the purview of the conmttee. She said she
respectfully requested that the governor's executive order was
schedul ed on the commttee's cal endar for consideration.

CHAI R HAWKER said he would take the request under advisenent;
however, he said the entire legislature had already voted and

was on record as saying "we do not want him to do this." He
sai d:
W have the entire legislature on record. That was
done very clearly in the budgets that we passed in the
| egislative process during the legislative
sessi on. That is the appropriate vehicle for the

| egislature to express itself, not one or two people
on this conmttee to attenpt to create the appearance
that we are speaking on behalf of the entire
| egi sl ature.

Notwi t hstandi ng that, Chair Hawker reiterated that he would take
the request of the commttee nenbers under advi senent.

11: 59: 28 AM

ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the
Legi sl ative Budget and Audit Committee neeting was adjourned at
11: 59 a. m

BUD COWM TTEE -32- July 22, 2015



